

## JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

## Forty-eighth Legislative Assembly

\* \* \* \* \*

## FORTY-SECOND DAY

Bismarck, March 4, 1983

The House convened at 1:00 p.m., with Speaker Kelly presiding.

The prayer was offered by Rev. George Walker, Evangelical Free Church, Bismarck.

## ROLL CALL

The roll was called and all members were present, except Representatives Murphy, Rued, Shide, and W. Williams.

A quorum was declared by the Speaker.

## REVISION AND CORRECTION OF THE JOURNAL

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Revision and Correction of the Journal has carefully examined the Journal of the Forty-first day and finds the same to be correct.

We have reexamined the Journal of the Thirty-seventh day and recommend that the same be corrected as follows and when so corrected, recommends that the same be approved:

On page 1461, line 11, after the word "Representatives" insert the name "Boyle" and renumber the lines accordingly  
REP. LAUGHLIN, Chairman

REP. GULLICKSON MOVED that the report be adopted, which motion prevailed.

## SIGNING OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS

THE CHIEF CLERK ANNOUNCED that the Speaker signed the following:

HB 1059, HB 1065, HB 1121, HB 1127, HB 1129, HB 1142,  
HB 1166, HB 1188, HB 1218, HB 1223, HB 1226, HB 1232,  
HB 1271, HB 1287, HB 1303, HB 1325, HB 1332, HB 1344,  
HB 1391, HB 1392, HB 1411, HB 1412, HB 1434, HB 1438,  
HB 1453, HB 1465, HB 1469, HB 1484, HB 1497, HB 1561,  
HB 1624, HB 1631, HB 1634, HB 1660, HCR 3001, HCR 3003,  
HCR 3004, HCR 3008

CHARLES FLEMING, Chief Clerk

## SIGNING OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS

THE CHIEF CLERK ANNOUNCED that the Speaker signed the following:

SB 2153, SB 2218, SB 2252, SB 2254, SB 2256, SB 2257,  
SB 2263, SB 2389

CHARLES FLEMING, Chief Clerk

MESSAGES TO THE SENATE  
HOUSE CHAMBER

MR. PRESIDENT: I have the honor to transmit herewith the following which the Speaker has signed and your signature is respectfully requested:

HB 1059, HB 1065, HB 1121, HB 1127, HB 1129, HB 1142,  
HB 1166, HB 1188, HB 1218, HB 1223, HB 1226, HB 1232,  
HB 1271, HB 1287, HB 1303, HB 1325, HB 1332, HB 1344,  
HB 1391, HB 1392, HB 1411, HB 1412, HB 1434, HB 1438,  
HB 1453, HB 1465, HB 1469, HB 1484, HB 1497, HB 1561,  
HB 1624, HB 1631, HB 1634, HB 1660, HCR 3001, HCR 3003,  
HCR 3004, HCR 3008

Very respectfully,  
CHARLES FLEMING, Chief Clerk

HOUSE CHAMBER

MR. PRESIDENT: I have the honor to return herewith the following which the House has passed unchanged:

SB 2195, SB 2200, SB 2213, SB 2223, SB 2258, SB 2283,  
SB 2284, SB 2293, SB 2298, SB 2396, SB 2406, SB 2434

Very respectfully,  
CHARLES FLEMING, Chief Clerk

HOUSE CHAMBER

MR. PRESIDENT: I have the honor to return herewith the following which the House has amended:

SB 2104, SB 2106, SB 2432, SB 2450

Very respectfully,  
CHARLES FLEMING, Chief Clerk

HOUSE CHAMBER

MR. PRESIDENT: I have the honor to inform you that the House has concurred in the Senate amendments to the following and subsequently passed the same:

HB 1064, HB 1065, HB 1110, HB 1219, HB 1220, HB 1225,  
HB 1271, HB 1274, HB 1287, HB 1303

Very respectfully,  
CHARLES FLEMING, Chief Clerk

HOUSE CHAMBER

MR. PRESIDENT: I have the honor to inform you that the House does not concur in the Senate amendments to HB 1661, and the Speaker has appointed as a conference committee to act with a like committee from the Senate on HB 1661:

Reps. R. Meiers, A. Olson, Stofferahn

Very respectfully,  
CHARLES FLEMING, Chief Clerk

HOUSE CHAMBER

MR. PRESIDENT: I have the honor to return herewith the following which the Speaker has signed:

SB 2153, SB 2218, SB 2252, SB 2254, SB 2256, SB 2257,  
SB 2263, SB 2389

Very respectfully,  
CHARLES FLEMING, Chief Clerk

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

SENATE CHAMBER

MADAM SPEAKER: I have the honor to return herewith HB 1300, HB 1522, and HB 1535 which the Senate has amended as follows:

SENATE AMENDMENTS TO HB 1300

On page 1, line 28, delete the word "notwithstanding" and insert in lieu thereof the word "less", and after the word "other" insert the word "paid"

On page 2, line 1, after the word "year" and before the period insert the words "pursuant to this section"

On page 2, line 5, after the word "given" insert the words "the option of time off with a concurrent loss of pay for the period missed or must be given"

And renumber the lines accordingly

SENATE AMENDMENTS TO HB 1522

On page 1, line 11, overstrike the word "thirty-"

On page 1, line 12, overstrike the word "five" and insert immediately thereafter the word "twenty-five"

And renumber the lines accordingly

SENATE AMENDMENTS TO HB 1535

On page 11 of the engrossed bill, line 16, remove the overstrike over the words "~~Not shall it prevent schools~~", and after the overstruck comma insert the word "and", and remove the overstrike over the letters "~~YMCA's~~"

On page 11 of the engrossed bill, line 17, remove the overstrike over the words "~~from furnishing therapy~~"

On page 11 of the engrossed bill, line 18, remove the overstrike over the words "~~service to their players and members.~~"

And renumber the lines accordingly

Very respectfully,  
LEO LEIDHOLM, Secretary

#### SENATE CHAMBER

MADAM SPEAKER: I have the honor to return herewith the following which the Senate has failed to pass:

HB 1081, HB 1555

Very respectfully,  
LEO LEIDHOLM, Secretary

#### SENATE CHAMBER

MADAM SPEAKER: I have the honor to return herewith the following which the Senate has passed unchanged:

HB 1422, HB 1457, HB 1471, HB 1524, HB 1632

Very respectfully,  
LEO LEIDHOLM, Secretary

#### SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS

REP. S. F. HOFFNER MOVED that the amendments to Engrossed SB 2382 as recommended by the Committee on Industry, Business, and Labor as printed on pages 1619 and 1620 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. R. MEIERS MOVED that the amendments to SCR 4025 as recommended by the Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs as printed on page 1620 of the House Journal be adopted.

#### REQUEST

REP. D. OLSEN REQUESTED a recorded roll call vote on the motion to adopt the amendments to SCR 4025, which request was granted.

#### MOTION

REP. BACKES MOVED the previous question, which motion prevailed.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final adoption of the proposed amendments to SCR 4025, the roll was called and there were 55 YEAS, 48 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, R.; Aubol; Backes; Black; Brokaw; DeMers; Eagles; Erdman; Gates; Gerl; Gullickson; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan; Hughes; Jacobson; Kloubec; Koski; Kretschmar; Lardy; Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lloyd; Martin, G.; Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Mertens; Moore; Mushik; Nalewaja; Opedahl; Peltier; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Richard; Sanstead; Schneider; Schoenwald; Sinner; Solberg; Stofferahn; Strinden; Swiontek; Unhjem; Vig; Wentz; Williams, A.; Speaker Kelly

NAYS: Anderson, C.; Boyle; Conmy; Dotzenrod; DuBord; Goetz; Gorder; Gunsch; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer; Hill; Keller; Kent; Kingsbury; Knudson; Koehn; Kuchera; Lang; Lipsiea; Martin, C.; Melby; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Murphy; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; O'Shea; Peterson; Rayl; Retzer; Rice; Riehl; Riley; Schindler; Shide; Shockman; Thompson; Timm; Vander Vorst; Watne; Whalen; Williams, C.; Wold

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Martinson; Rued; Williams, W.

So the amendments to SCR 4025 were declared adopted.

#### REPORT OF PROCEDURAL COMMITTEE

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Enrollment and Engrossment respectfully reports that it has examined the following bills and finds the same correctly enrolled:

HB 1002, HB 1064, HB 1073, HB 1110, HB 1114, HB 1174,  
HB 1219, HB 1220, HB 1225, HB 1238, HB 1274, HB 1450,  
HB 1462, HB 1514, HB 1580, HB 1598, HB 1633, HB 1636,  
HB 1645, HB 1689, HCR 3006, HCR 3025

REP. G. MARTIN, Chairman

REP. SHIDE MOVED that the report be adopted, which motion prevailed.

#### MOTIONS

REP. BACKES MOVED that a committee of two be appointed to escort the Honorable Allen I. Olson, Governor of North Dakota, to the rostrum, which motion prevailed.

SPEAKER KELLY APPOINTED Representatives Backes and Strinden to such committee, and Governor Olson was escorted to the rostrum and introduced to the Assembly.

REP. BACKES MOVED that a committee of two be appointed to escort General David C. Jones to the rostrum to address the Assembly, which motion prevailed.

SPEAKER KELLY APPOINTED Representatives Haugland and Peterson to such committee and General Jones was escorted to the rostrum.

Governor Olson introduced General Jones to the Assembly.

#### ADDRESS BY GENERAL DAVID C. JONES

Governor Olson, Madam Speaker, Members of the House, Ladies and Gentlemen: You do me great honor by allowing me to stand here. You honored me by the Teddy Roosevelt Roughrider Award and my portrait hanging down below.

My parents moved our family here to Bismarck when I was two years old. We lived here for a few years and in Williston and Minot,

and I went to the University in Grand Forks, as well as Minot State College. I might just say here: Thank you for the vote on Dakota Northwestern University. We appreciate that.

I think the hardy life of North Dakota prepared me well for a military career. I can recall my father who was very interested in politics. He never ran for office, but in the grain business, he traveled all over this state. I think I have been in every little town and village and city in North Dakota. He inspired in me an interest in government and in politics and in politics in the best sense of the word. I have been interested during my entire military career, not only in Washington, but when I was overseas. I lived overseas for ten years, mainly in Germany and Japan. Every day my conviction grew that our form of government was the best in the world, but there were a couple of disturbing trends and thoughts, particularly, on reflection, now that I have had a few months off active duty. First, that in our country there's a little bit too much confrontation: government, labor, and business, and confrontation within the government between the executive and legislative branch or between Washington and the states. I saw, for example, business, labor, and government in Japan working in a much more cooperative way that was helpful to their whole nation so we need a good bipartisan approach. We need differences of opinion, but the best we can do is to work out a way that is less confrontational.

The other concern is to do with our impatience in this country. We are impatient people and there is much good to that, but, on the other side of the coin, that tends to mean we end up neglecting long-term planning and the discipline of long-term actions that are needed.

There are others that do better in long-term planning than we do, whether it's in the government or in the corporate world, and, particularly, in the foreign policy and the defense business. This last weekend I spent two and one-half days with twenty leaders from Latin America. Their greatest criticism of United States was inconsistency. They were never quite sure where we stood. Policies change very dramatically over a very few years, and so they were uncertain as to what we were going to do. When we made a commitment today, it may evaporate a couple of years from now. I think part of the problem has been exacerbated by the lack of continuity.

If you look back fifty years: the first twenty-eight years we had only three presidents, Roosevelt, Truman, and Eisenhower. In the last twenty-two years, we have had six. In the eight and one-half years since I became a member of the Joint Chiefs of Staff, I worked with four presidents. But in this eight and one-half or eight and two-thirds years, we not only had four presidents, we've had four secretaries of defense, we've had five deputy secretaries of defense, the person who tends to run the department internally, five secretaries of state, and five national security advisors, so there is a lack of continuity.

Because of the short tenure, there tends to be more emphasis on the political expediency of addressing the problem of the moment as opposed to what are the long-term problems of our nation.

I got into the tail end of your debate just now on abortion and nuclear weapons. Of course, I have been involved with nuclear weapons for many, many years. I think our objectives are all the same, and that is to prevent a nuclear war. That is a most important thing for my defense establishment. I have been a strong supporter of arms control, and continue to speak out in the area of arms control and try to get some stability and some understanding in this world of what we are trying to do and how to do it. I have been critical of some of the actions by the Administration, but we need to move forward in arms control, as well in our defense area.

What's going on in the defense, actually, as you know, impacts on the rest of our country in many ways, some positively and some negatively, from an economic standpoint. There are very large defense budget deficits that we are faced with: 180-200 billion dollars in the years ahead. I have spent many hours in the last two weeks testifying before the House and Senate Budget Committees in Washington that are looking to cut the defense budget in 1984. The advice that I gave them was whatever you do, do it differently from what has been done in the years past.

In the years past, people haven't wanted to face up to the long-term issues. What happened is they cut training hours, they cut spare parts, they cut maintenance, and both sides of the river tend to be guilty of this, both the executive and the legislative branches, but the legislative branch when they address the budget, cut those items that don't appear to have any real impact, not like cutting a major weapon system. Therefore, it didn't come home until years later when we ended up with ships that couldn't sail and airplanes that couldn't fly. They have a real dilemma on their hands, wanting to cut the defense budget and not wanting to cut the readiness and not wanting to cut major weapon systems, so it's a very, very difficult process, but my basic advice to them was don't take actions today that are short-sighted, that will complicate the problems out in the later 1980's: 1985, 1986, 1987, and 1988. Have the courage to take actions today. It is politically difficult, but that will help solve the problems of the years ahead.

One of the problems in Social Security was that there was no action until recently to look at the future. All of the actions were for now, and so in the defense budget, we're urging whatever the nation decides to do, whatever it decides it can afford with regard to the 1984 budget, look to the future.

I think this is important in the corporate world. Now that I am on a number of corporate boards, I think this is important for the American people and for all of our aspects of the government

to think in that broader term, think in a disciplined way of the years ahead.

We have a steady growth by the Soviets. There were a number of us who testified before Congress three years ago as the defense consensus was building, that what we needed was good steady growth, as steep as the country could afford, but good steady growth. The worst thing that could happen was a sharp new increase, many new programs started and then a sharp erosion of the support for defense. We'd be worse off than if we had had a lower but more steady growth, because we wouldn't have started so many things we can't finish.

Now we are at that dilemma today. We have started more things than we can finish even if every dollar that President Reagan has asked for is appropriated, because of the under-estimated costs that you now read about in the papers, because of optimism and, not because anybody is being dishonest, but because everybody thinks everything is going to go well.

So they have a dilemma already on their hands of more started than can be finished if what's appropriated and what's asked for is approved; and with a great desire in the Congress to make the cuts. I just hope that the American people understand that if the Congress has the courage to make the right decisions, the ones that are politically difficult in the near term, whatever the cuts would be, and face up to some tough decisions, rather than the easy way out of making cuts in readiness in other areas that don't appear to impact on defense, they will impact on defense in the days ahead.

I thank you for the honor that you have shown me by your attention and by allowing me to speak to you today. God bless each and every one of you. God bless the great people of North Dakota. Thank you.

#### MOTIONS

REP. BACKES MOVED that the remarks of General David C. Jones be printed in the House Journal, which motion prevailed.

REP. UNHJEM MOVED that the vote by which the amendments to SCR 4025 were adopted be reconsidered and the motion to reconsider be laid on the table, which motion prevailed on a verification vote.

REP. BROKAW MOVED that SB 2109 be rereferred to the Committee on Natural Resources, which motion prevailed.

SPEAKER KELLY ANNOUNCED that SB 2109 was rereferred to the Committee on Natural Resources.

REP. SERENUS HOFFNER MOVED that the House reconsider its action whereby SB 2327 failed to pass.



REP. KOSKI MOVED the previous question, which motion failed.

The question being on the motion to reconsider SB 2327, the motion passed on a verification vote.

REP. BACKES MOVED that SB 2327 be laid over one legislative day, which motion prevailed.

## SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1498: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 58-08-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to compensation of township treasurers.

Which has been read.

## ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill as amended, House Journal page 1569, the roll was called and there were 98 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 8 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Aubol; Black; Boyle; Brokaw; Conmy; DeMers; Dotzenrod; DuBord; Erdman; Gates; Gerl; Goetz; Gorder; Gullickson; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S. E.; Horgan; Hughes; Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Knudson; Koehn; Koski; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Lardy; Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lloyd; Martin, C.; Martinson; Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Melby; Mertens; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Murphy; Mushik; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier; Peterson; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Sanstead; Schindler; Schneider; Schoenwald; Shide; Shockman; Sinner; Solberg; Stofferahn; Strinden; Swiontek; Thompson; Timm; Vander Vorst; Vig; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Wold; Speaker Kelly

NAYS: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; Eagles; Lipsiea; Martin, G.; Moore; Rued; Unhjem; Williams, W.

HB 1498 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

## SECOND READING OF HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

HCR 3086: A concurrent resolution urging the President of the United States and the Congress to propose and enact legislation amending the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA) to eliminate the federal preemption

and to permit the respective states to regulate employee health benefit plans.

Which has been read.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final adoption of the resolution, the roll was called and there were 94 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 9 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Aubol; Backes; Black; Boyle; Brokaw; Conmy; DeMers; Dotzenrod; DuBord; Eagles; Erdman; Gates; Goetz; Gorder; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan; Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Knudson; Koehn; Koski; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Lardy; Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lloyd; Martin, C.; Martin, G.; Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Melby; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Murphy; Mushik; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Sanstead; Schindler; Schneider; Schoenwald; Shide; Shockman; Sinner; Solberg; Stofferahn; Strinden; Swiontek; Thompson; Timm; Vander Vorst; Vig; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Wold; Speaker Kelly

NAYS: Anderson, R.; Hughes; Mertens

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gerl; Gullickson; Gunsch; Lipsiea; Martinson; Peterson; Rued; Unhjem; Williams, W.

HCR 3086 was declared adopted.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### SECOND READING OF SENATE BILLS

SB 2076: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 20.1-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to interference with rights of hunters.

Which has been read.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 29 YEAS, 70 NAYS, 7 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Aubol; Black; DuBord; Gates; Gullickson; Hanson, L.; Hill; Hoffner, Serenus; Keller; Kloubec; Koehn; Koski; Lang; Lautenschlager; Lloyd; Martin, G.; Meier, A.; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Moore;

Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; O'Shea; Riley; Sanstead;  
Schindler; Schoenwald; Timm

NAYS: Anderson, R.; Backes; Boyle; Brokaw; Conmy; DeMers;  
Dotzenrod; Eagles; Erdman; Gerl; Goetz; Gorder; Gunsch;  
Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer;  
Hjelle; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan; Hughes; Jacobson; Kent;  
Kingsbury; Knudson; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lardy;  
Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Laughlin; Linderman;  
Martin, C.; Martinson; Meiers, R.; Melby; Mertens;  
Murphy; Mushik; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki;  
O'Connell; Olafson; Opedahl; Peltier; Pomeroy, E.;  
Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl;  
Schneider; Shide; Shockman; Sinner; Solberg;  
Stofferahn; Swiontek; Thompson; Vander Vorst; Vig;  
Watne; Wentz; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Wold;  
Speaker Kelly

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Lipsiea; Peterson; Rued;  
Strinden; Unhjem; Whalen; Williams, W.

SB 2076 was declared lost.

\*\*\*\*\*

SB 2094: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section  
11-28.2-04.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to  
mailing of notice of improvements to all owners of property  
within a recreation service district.

Which has been read.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was  
called and there were 94 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 10 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Aubol; Backes; Black;  
Boyle; Brokaw; Conmy; DeMers; Dotzenrod; Eagles;  
Erdman; Gates; Gerl; Goetz; Gullickson; Gunsch;  
Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland;  
Hausauer; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Horgan;  
Hughes; Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec;  
Knudson; Koehn; Koski; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang;  
Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager;  
Linderman; Lloyd; Martin, C.; Martin, G.; Martinson;  
Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Melby; Mertens; Meyer, R.;  
Meyer, W.; Moore; Murphy; Mushik; Nalewaja; Nicholas;  
Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.;  
Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.;  
Rayl; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Sanstead;  
Schindler; Schneider; Schoenwald; Shide; Shockman;  
Sinner; Solberg; Stofferahn; Swiontek; Thompson; Timm;  
Vander Vorst; Vig; Wentz; Williams, A.; Williams, C.;  
Wold; Speaker Kelly

NAYS: DuBord; Lardy

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gorder; Hoffner, S. F.; Lipsiea; Peterson; Rued; Strinden; Unhjelm; Watne; Whalen; Williams, W.

SB 2094 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### POINT OF PERSONAL PRIVILEGE

REP. BROKAW: Madam Speaker: I rise to a point of personal privilege and request that my remarks be printed in the Journal.

Mrs. John L. (Bertha) Kambeitz of Napoleon was selected recently by a panel of judges to be the North Dakota Mother of the Year for 1983. The selection was made at the annual meeting of the North Dakota Mothers Association in Carrington. Mrs. Kambeitz was sponsored by the Napoleon Jaycees.

Bertha has been a member of the American Legion Auxiliary since 1946, and has been president three terms. She has attended two National Legion Auxiliary conventions, served as treasurer for eleven years, and secretary four years.

In 1969, she helped organize the Logan County Cancer Unit and served as its president that year. She continued as president for four years. She presently serves as memorial and service chairman and has organized seven cancer detection clinics for women in the Napoleon area.

Bertha has been a member of the Napoleon ambulance squad since 1979, and became the first Napoleonite to become a certified C.P.R. instructor. Over one hundred area people have been instructed in C.P.R. under her guidance.

She was a Confraternity of Christian Doctrine teacher, a 4-H leader four years, charter member of the Thrifty Homemakers Club and Catholic Daughters, and is a member of the Christian Mothers Society.

After her mother died in 1950, Mrs. Kambeitz' father lived with them until his death in 1964. She also provided Home Care Service for two elderly widows and for a young girl who lost her mother. The Kambeitzes hosted a lady from France one summer through the Friendship Program. They also served as foster parents for two seminarians in India who were ordained into the priesthood, and presently are sponsoring a seminarian and a foster child in Guatemala.

Mr. and Mrs. John J. Kambeitz have four children, Mrs. Ron (Mary Jo) Goodman, a registered nurse, Oakes, ND; John L., an English teacher at Napoleon; Mark L., a student at

Bismarck Junior College; and Joseph, a student at Mary College, Bismarck.

Mrs. Kambeitz will represent the state at national competition to be held April 20-23, at the Waldorf Astoria in New York.

Bertha and North Dakota's merit mothers and fathers will be honored at a luncheon open to the public at noon, April 16, at the Municipal Country Club in Bismarck. After the luncheon, they will be guests of Governor and Mrs. Allen Olson at a reception and tea at the Governor's Mansion.

#### MOTIONS

REP. RILEY MOVED that the House reconsider its action whereby SB 2438 failed to pass, which motion prevailed.

REP. BACKES MOVED that SB 2438 be laid over one legislative day, which motion prevailed.

#### SECOND READING OF SENATE BILLS

SB 2115: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 20.1-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to hunting, trapping, or fishing while privileges are suspended; to amend and reenact section 20.1-01-26 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the suspension of hunting and fishing privileges; and to provide a penalty.

Which has been read.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 72 YEAS, 26 NAYS, 8 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Black; Boyle; Brokaw; DeMers; DuBord; Eagles; Erdman; Gates; Goetz; Gorder; Gullickson; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Haugland; Hausauer; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan; Jacobson; Kloubec; Koehn; Koski; Kretschmar; Lardy; Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lloyd; Martin, C.; Martin, G.; Martinson; Meier, A.; Mertens; Meyer, W.; Moore; Mushik; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riley; Sanstead; Schneider; Schoenwald; Shockman; Sinner; Solberg; Stofferahn; Strinden; Swiontek; Timm; Vander Vorst; Vig; Wentz; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Wold; Speaker Kelly

NAYS: Anderson, R.; Aubol; Backes; Conmy; Dotzenrod; Gerl; Hanson, O.; Hill; Hughes; Keller; Kent; Kingsbury; Knudson; Kuchera; Lang; Meiers, R.; Melby; Meyer, R.; Murphy; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Riehl; Schindler; Shide; Thompson

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gunsch; Lipsiea; Peterson; Rued;  
Unhjem; Watne; Whalen; Williams, W.

SB 2115 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

SB 2161: A BILL for an Act to create and enact section 23-20.3-05.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to hazardous waste management facilities' permit or registration certificate fees.

Which has been read.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 93 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 9 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Aubol; Backes; Black; Boyle; Brokaw; DeMers; Dotzenrod; DuBord; Eagles; Erdman; Gates; Gerl; Goetz; Gullickson; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan; Hughes; Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Knudson; Koehn; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Lardy; Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lloyd; Martin, C.; Martin, G.; Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Melby; Mertens; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Mushik; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Sanstead; Schindler; Schneider; Schoenwald; Shide; Shockman; Sinner; Solberg; Stofferahn; Strinden; Swiontek; Thompson; Timm; Vander Vorst; Vig; Watne; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Wold; Speaker Kelly

NAYS: Conmy; Gorder; Murphy; Wentz

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Koski; Lipsiea; Martinson; Olson, A.; Peterson; Rued; Unhjem; Whalen; Williams, W.

SB 2161 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

SB 2171: A BILL for an Act to create and enact section 23-29-07.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to solid waste management facilities' permit or registration certificate fees.

Which has been read.

## ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 91 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 10 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Aubol; Backes; Black; Boyle; Brokaw; DeMers; Dotzenrod; DuBord; Eagles; Erdman; Gates; Gerl; Goetz; Gullickson; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Haugland; Hausauer; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S. E.; Horgan; Hughes; Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kloubec; Knudson; Koehn; Koski; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Lardy; Larson, R.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lloyd; Martin, G.; Martinson; Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Melby; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Mushik; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Sanstead; Schindler; Schneider; Schoenwald; Shide; Shockman; Sinner; Stofferahn; Strinden; Swiontek; Thompson; Timm; Vander Vorst; Vig; Watne; Wentz; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Wold; Speaker Kelly

NAYS: Conmy; Gorder; Hanson, O.; Kingsbury; Murphy

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Larson, B.; Lipsiea; Martin, C.; Mertens; Peterson; Rued; Solberg; Unhjem; Whalen; Williams, W.

SB 2171 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

SB 2174: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 39-04-12, 39-04-14.1, 39-04-15, 39-04-21, 39-04-36, and 39-04-44 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to contents of number plates, renewal of passenger motor vehicle registration, when registration fees become due, fees for motor vehicles first registered in this state, transfer of registration, and credits on a destroyed vehicle.

Which has been read.

## ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 47 YEAS, 52 NAYS, 7 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Conmy; Eagles; Gates; Goetz; Gorder; Gunsch; Hamerlik; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer; Hughes; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Knudson; Koehn; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Larson, R.; Martin, C.; Martinson; Melby; Moore; Murphy; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Peltier; Peterson; Retzer; Rice; Riley; Sanstead; Schindler;

Shide; Strinden; Swiontek; Thompson; Timm;  
Vander Vorst; Wentz; Wold

NAYS: Aubol; Backes; Black; Boyle; Brokaw; DeMers;  
Dotzenrod; DuBord; Erdman; Gerl; Gullickson; Halmrast;  
Hanson, L.; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus;  
Hoffner, S. E.; Horgan; Jacobson; Keller; Koski; Lardy;  
Larson, B.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lloyd;  
Martin, G.; Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Mertens; Meyer, R.;  
Mushik; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Opedahl; O'Shea;  
Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Richard; Riehl;  
Schneider; Schoenwald; Shockman; Sinner; Stofferahn;  
Vig; Watne; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Speaker Kelly

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Lipsiea; Meyer, W.; Rued;  
Solberg; Unhjem; Whalen; Williams, W.

SB 2174 was declared lost.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### MOTIONS

REP. SINNER MOVED that SB 2327 be rereferred to the Committee on Finance and Taxation, which motion prevailed.

SPEAKER KELLY ANNOUNCED that SB 2327 was rereferred to the Committee on Finance and Taxation.

REP. BACKES MOVED that the absent members be excused, which motion prevailed.

REP. BACKES MOVED that the House be on the Fifth order of business, and at the conclusion of the Fifth order, the House be on the Thirteenth order of business, and at the conclusion of the Thirteenth order, the House stand adjourned until 1:00 p.m., Monday, March 7, 1983, which motion prevailed.

#### REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Education to which was referred Engrossed SB 2088 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 15 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 5 of the engrossed bill, line 4, remove the overstrike over the words "~~Computing for part time teachers~~"

On page 5 of the engrossed bill, line 5, remove the overstrike over the word "~~the~~"

On page 5 of the engrossed bill, line 6, remove the overstrike over the words "~~provisions of~~" and remove



the overstrike over the words "~~shall be~~" and delete the word "is"

On page 5 of the engrossed bill, line 12, remove the overstrike over the words "~~At least four~~" and insert immediately thereafter the word "duty" and remove the overstrike over the words "~~hours per day for twenty days per month shall~~"

On page 5 of the engrossed bill, lines 13 and 14, remove the overstrike

And renumber the lines accordingly

REP. JACOBSON, Chairman

Engrossed SB 2088 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on State and Federal Government to which was referred SB 2164 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 2, after the numeral "54-17-07.3" insert the words "and section 54-17-07.7"

On page 1, line 4, delete the word "loan" and insert in lieu thereof the word "such" and delete the words "with housing lenders"

On page 1, line 5, delete the words "in furtherance of" and insert in lieu thereof the words "and establish such lending terms as are necessary to implement"

On page 1, line 12, delete the words "make loans to"

On page 1, line 13, delete the words "lenders or to" and overstrike the words "purchase or contract to purchase from"

On page 1, line 14, overstrike the words "lenders mortgage" and insert immediately thereafter the words "provide financing of" and after the word "made" insert the words "by lenders"

On page 1, line 15, overstrike the words "to finance" and insert immediately thereafter the word "for"

On page 1, line 20, delete the words "make loans to lenders or to" and overstrike the words "purchase or"

On page 1, line 21, overstrike the words "contract to purchase from lenders" and insert immediately

thereafter the words "provide financing of" and after the word "made" insert the words "by lenders"

On page 1, line 25, delete the word "make"

On page 1, line 26, delete the words "loans to lenders or to" and overstrike the words "make, purchase, and commit to make"

On page 1, line 27, overstrike the words "and purchase" and insert immediately thereafter the words "provide financing directly or indirectly of"

On page 2, after line 4, insert the following new section:

"SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 54-17-07.7 of the North Dakota Century Code is hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

54-17-07.7. Terms of loans. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the industrial commission is authorized to require, as a condition ~~to~~ of the origination ~~and of loans made pursuant to any of its housing finance programs or purchase of loans and mortgage loans to be purchased by it, prepayment penalties, restrictions upon assumability, default provisions, rights to accelerate, rights to increase the interest rate, and any other terms the commission may determine to be necessary or desirable to assure the repayment of its housing revenue bonds and the exemption from federal income taxes of the interest payable on its housing revenue bonds under the Internal Revenue Code of 1954. All such terms shall be enforceable by the originator, the commission, or any successor holder of the loans or mortgage loans unless expressly waived in writing by or on behalf of the commission."~~

And renumber the lines, sections, and pages accordingly  
REP. L. HANSON, Chairman

SB 2164 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Education to which was referred SB 2192 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 23, overstrike the word "his" and insert immediately thereafter the words "the superintendent's"

- On page 1, line 27, overstrike the word "He" and insert immediately thereafter the words "The superintendent"
- On page 2, line 1, overstrike the word "He" and insert immediately thereafter the words "The superintendent"
- On page 2, line 3, overstrike the word "his" and insert immediately thereafter the words "the superintendent's"
- On page 2, line 12, overstrike the words "to him", and overstrike the word "such" and insert immediately thereafter the word "the"
- On page 2, line 13, after the word "superintendent" insert the words "of public instruction"
- On page 2, line 35, delete the word "his" and insert in lieu thereof the word "the"
- On page 3, line 2, overstrike the word "he" and insert immediately thereafter the words "the board president"
- On page 3, line 3, overstrike the word "they" and insert immediately thereafter the words "the board members"
- On page 3, line 9, overstrike the word "his" and insert immediately thereafter the word "the"
- On page 3, line 20, overstrike the word "his" and insert immediately thereafter the words "the superintendent's"

And renumber the lines accordingly

REP. JACOBSON, Chairman

SB 2192 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Natural Resources to which was referred SB 2217 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 7 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

- On page 4, line 23, overstrike the word "purposes" and insert immediately thereafter the words "of such land"
- On page 4, line 23, delete the words "upon compliance with this section" and insert in lieu thereof the words "except that any conditional or perfected water"

permit for irrigation purposes must be assigned in accordance with this section"

And renumber the lines accordingly

REP. BROKAW, Chairman

SB 2217 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Political Subdivisions to which was referred SB 2265 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS and be rereferred to the Committee on Appropriations:

On page 1, line 5, after the word "sales" insert the following words: "; and to declare an emergency"

On page 1, after line 24, insert the following new section:

"SECTION 2. EMERGENCY. This Act is hereby declared to be an emergency measure and is in effect from and after its passage and approval."

And renumber the lines, sections, and pages accordingly

REP. DOTZENROD, Chairman

SB 2265 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Education to which was referred Engrossed SB 2274 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 8 YEAS, 7 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO NOT PASS:

On page 1 of the engrossed bill, line 10, delete the word "who"

On page 1 of the engrossed bill, line 11, delete the words "shall be a nonvoting member,"

On page 1 of the engrossed bill, line 12, remove the overstrike over the word "~~three~~" and delete the word "four"

On page 1 of the engrossed bill, line 15, delete the words "one of the appointees shall be a"

On page 1 of the engrossed bill, delete lines 16 through 19

On page 1 of the engrossed bill, line 20, delete the words "by the North Dakota education association,"

And renumber the lines accordingly

REP. JACOBSON, Chairman

Engrossed SB 2274 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Political Subdivisions to which was referred Engrossed SB 2282 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 12 YEAS, 1 NAY, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 2 of the engrossed bill, line 6, overstrike the word "One-mill" and insert immediately thereafter the word "Two-mill"

And renumber the lines and pages accordingly

REP. DOTZENROD, Chairman

Engrossed SB 2282 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Judiciary to which was referred SB 2446 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 3, line 9, remove the overstrike over the words "~~not to be destroyed~~" and delete the words "to be maintained"

On page 3, line 10, delete the words "unless authorized by rule" and remove the overstrike over the word "~~None~~" and delete the words "Unless authorized by"

On page 3, line 11, delete the words "rules of the supreme court, none"

And renumber the lines accordingly

REP. E. POMEROY, Chairman

SB 2446 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Political Subdivisions to which was referred SB 2491 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 13 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 4, line 9, delete the words "For bonds issued under this section to be an obligation of"

On page 4, delete lines 10 through 17

On page 4, line 18, delete the words "an election called for the purpose." and insert in lieu thereof the following:

"For bonds issued under this chapter to be an obligation of an authority, or of a municipality acting as an authority, either of the following methods must be followed:

a. The issuance of the bonds must be approved by a majority vote of the governing body of each political subdivision whose constitutional or statutory debt limitation will be affected by the issuance of the bonds. The initial resolution authorizing the bonds must be published in the official paper, and any owner of taxable property within the geographic area which the obligation will be applicable may, within sixty days after the publication, file with the city auditor or other appropriate official of the authority or other political subdivision affected, a protest against the adoption of the resolution. If the governing body finds the protests to have been signed by the owners of taxable property having an assessed valuation equal to twenty percent or more of the assessed valuation of all taxable property within the affected geographic areas, as last equalized, all further proceedings under the initial resolution are barred.

b. Within thirty days after the adoption of the initial resolution authorizing the bonds, the question must be submitted to the electors of the affected area. The question may be put at a general election, a primary election, a municipal election or an election called for that purpose."

And renumber the lines and pages accordingly

REP. DOTZENROD, Chairman

SB 2491 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Agriculture to which was referred SCR 4032 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 10 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 27, after the word "States" insert a comma and delete the word "and"

On page 1, line 28, after the word "Delegation" insert the words ", to the United States Secretary of State, and to the United States Secretary of Agriculture"

And renumber the lines accordingly

REP. W. MEYER, Chairman

SCR 4032 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Appropriations to which was referred SB 2133 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 16 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. MERTENS, Chairman

SB 2133 was placed on the Fourteenth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Political Subdivisions to which was referred SB 2140 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 11 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. DOTZENROD, Chairman

SB 2140 was placed on the Fourteenth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Natural Resources to which was referred SB 2152 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. BROKAW, Chairman

SB 2152 was placed on the Fourteenth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Natural Resources to which was referred Engrossed SB 2154 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. BROKAW, Chairman

Engrossed SB 2154 was placed on the Fourteenth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Natural Resources to which was referred SB 2181 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 7 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. BROKAW, Chairman

SB 2181 was placed on the Fourteenth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Political Subdivisions to which was referred Engrossed SB 2198 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 10 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. DOTZENROD, Chairman

Engrossed SB 2198 was placed on the Fourteenth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Natural Resources to which was referred SB 2215 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. BROKAW, Chairman

SB 2215 was placed on the Fourteenth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Natural Resources to which was referred Engrossed SB 2216 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. BROKAW, Chairman

Engrossed SB 2216 was placed on the Fourteenth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Transportation to which was referred SB 2310 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 12 YEAS, 1 NAY, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. HJELLE, Chairman

SB 2310 was placed on the Fourteenth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Agriculture to which was referred SB 2333 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 15 YEAS, 1 NAY, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. W. MEYER, Chairman

SB 2333 was placed on the Fourteenth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.



MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Political Subdivisions to which was referred SB 2426 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. DOTZENROD, Chairman

SB 2426 was placed on the Fourteenth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Natural Resources to which was referred Engrossed SB 2464 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 10 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. BROKAW, Chairman

Engrossed SB 2464 was placed on the Fourteenth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Transportation to which was referred Engrossed SB 2489 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 10 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. HJELLE, Chairman

Engrossed SB 2489 was placed on the Fourteenth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

#### FIRST READING OF A SENATE BILL

SB 2249: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 5-01-06, 11-15-03, 11-29-10, 11-29-20, 12-53-13, subsection 2 of section 12.1-20-01, sections 12.1-20-02, 12.1-29-02, 14-02-06, 14-02-08, 14-03-07, 14-05-06, 14-05-07, 14-05-25, 14-05-26, 14-07-03, 14-07-05, 14-07-08, 14-07-10, 14-07-11, 14-07-16, 14-07-20, 14-07-21, 14-07-22, 14-08-01, 14-08-02, 14-08-03, 14-08-04, 14-08-05, 14-09-05, 14-09-06, 14-09-08, 14-09-09, 18-11-17, 23-14-04, 26-10-17, 27-17-01, 27-17-02, 28-21-12, 28-22-11, 32-04-12, 34-07-16, subsection 7 of section 37-01-40, 37-02-01, 37-07-01, 37-12-01, 37-15-02, 37-15-10, 44-08-17, 50-02-01, 50-02-03, 50-02-04, and 54-01-26 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to correcting sex discriminatory language in North Dakota statutes, eliminating spousal immunity for the crime of gross sexual imposition, and eliminating rights of personal relation; and to repeal section 50-02-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to acquiring residency in North Dakota.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

#### FIRST READING OF A SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

SCR 4052: A concurrent resolution urging the United States Commissioner of Customs to keep the United States Customs Service station at Dunseith, North Dakota, open 24 hours a day.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on State and Federal Government.

The House stood adjourned pursuant to Representative Backes' motion.

CHARLES FLEMING, Chief Clerk